
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  
City Hall Annex, 205 4th Street 

February 04, 2019 
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
  
Oath of Office 
 
  
Approval of Minutes 
 
1. Draft Council Minutes- January 22, 2019 
  
Items from the Audience 
Scheduled 
 
Unscheduled (20 Minutes) 
Audience members may address the Council on any issue other than those scheduled for a public 
hearing or those on which the public hearing has been closed.  Prior to commenting please state your 
name, address, and topic.  Please keep comments under 4 minutes. 
  
Consent Agenda 
 
  
Public Hearing 
 
2. North Prairie Phase 7 Sanitary Sewer Extension Latecomer's 
  
Unfinished Business 
 
  
New Business 
 
3. Police Officers Collective Bargaining Agreement 2018-2021 
  
Other Business 
 
4. CDC Minutes 01-23-2019 

5. Draft Parks Committee Minutes- January 22, 2019 
6. Council Calendar: Feb 4-18, 2019 

  

Mayor 
Scott Korthuis 

 
Council Members 

Gary Bode 
Ron De Valois 
Gerald Kuiken 
Nick H. Laninga 
Brent Lenssen 
Kyle Strengholt 
Mark Wohlrab 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
1



300 4
th
 Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

 
 

Executive Session 
 
  
Adjournment 

  

2



 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2019 Legal Review: 
☐ Yes - Reviewed 
☐ No - Not Reviewed 
☒ Review Not Required 

Department: Administration 
Contact Name/Phone: 360.255.7085 
Council Committee Review: 
☐ Community Development         ☐ Public Safety 
☐ Finance                                    ☐ Public Works 
☐ Parks                                        ☐ Other: N/A 
Attachments: 
Draft January 22, 2019 Council Minutes 
Name of Agenda Item: 
Draft January 22, 2019 Council Minutes 
Summary Statement: 
See next page. 
Recommended Action: 
For Council review. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

3



 
 

 
 

 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 1 of 4 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

 
 
January 22, 2019 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Korthuis called to order the January 22, 2019 regular session of the Lynden City Council at 7:00 p.m. 
at the Lynden City Hall Annex. 
 
 ROLL CALL              
 
Members present:  Mayor Scott Korthuis and Councilors Gary Bode, Ron De Valois, Gerald Kuiken, Brent 
Lenssen, Nick Laninga, Kyle Strengholt, and Mark Wohlrab.  
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff present:  Finance Director Anthony Burrows, Fire Chief Mark Billmire, Parks Director Vern Meenderinck, 
Police Chief John Billester, Public Works Director Steve Banham, City Clerk Pam Brown, and City 
Administrator Mike Martin.  
 
 
OATH OF OFFICE  
 
Mayor Korthuis administered the Police Officer Oath of Office to newly hired officer, Joshua Scholten.   
Mayor Korthuis, Council and Staff welcomed the Officer Scholten and offered their congratulations.  
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Councilor De Valois moved and Councilor Wohlrab  seconded that the minutes of January 7, 2019 be 
approved. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote. 
 
 
ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
  
Scheduled:  None 
 
Nonscheduled: None 
 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Approval of Payroll Disbursed – January 1-16, 2019 
 
 
Payroll information unavailable. 
 
 
 
 

4



 
 

 
 

 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 2 of 4 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Approval of Claims – January 24, 2019 
 
Manual Warrants No. - through -   $0.00 
EFT Payment Pre-Pays          $0.00 
  Sub Total Pre-Pays  $0.00 
 
Voucher Warrants No. 72255 through 72381         $1,185,421.54 
EFT Payments    24,283.10 
  Sub Total  1,209,704.64 
  Total Accts. Payable $1,209,704.64 

 
Set Public Hearing Date (February 4, 2019)  for North Prairie, Phase 7- Sanitary Sewer Extension 
Latecomer’s Application 
 
Councilor Bode moved and Councilor Strengholt  seconded to approve the Consent Agenda.   
Motion approved on 7-0 vote.  
 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING - None 
 
 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
Ordinance No. 1571-Setting Final Property Tax for 2019 
The City of Lynden is required by State regulations to adopt a 2019 property tax levy. On November 19, 2018 
the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1566 which was passed relying on the preliminary figures for the 
assessed valuation of the City's tax base, as provided by the Whatcom County Assessor's Office at that time. 
 
The original executive summary presented to Council on November 19, 2018 indicated that an ordinance 
setting the exact final levy would be forwarded to the Finance Committee and City Council for consideration 
when the County Assessor's Office provided the final assessed valuation for 2018.  The County Assessor's 
office has provided the final numbers at this time.   
 
For Council information, the final calculations result in a total dollar levy amount of $3,282,310.  Per Council's 
direction this amount incorporated a 1% increase in the regular property tax, as allowed per the Revised Code 
of Washington.  This total dollar levy reflects a mil rate of $1.79746 per $1,000 of assessed valuation.  This is 
a decrease of approximately 14 cents from the 2018 rate. The Finance Committee reviewed this ordinance at 
their committee meeting, prior to the Council meeting on January 22, 2019. 
 
Councilor Kuiken moved and Councilor Laninga  seconded to approve Ordinance No. 1571 as written 
and authorize the Mayor’s signature.   Motion approved on 7-0 vote.  
 
 
 
 
 

5



 
 

 
 

 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 3 of 4 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS  
 
Resolution No. 994-Latecomer Agreement Fee Schedule 
The information concerning the latecomer application fee, the fact that it must be paid at the time of submittal 
and that it  is non-refundable needs to be updated. These updates are reflected in resolution no. 994. The 
Public Works Committee reviewed this at their January 9 meeting and concurred to recommend approval to 
the full City Council. 
 
Councilor Bode moved and Councilor Kuiken seconded to approve Resolution No. 994- Latecomers 
Agreement Fee Schedule and authorize the Mayor’s signature on the resolution. Motion approved on 
7-0 vote.  
 
 
Ordinance No. 1572-Update to Latecomers Agreement Methods and Procedures 
The major portion of this update pertains to 2015 legislation that provides municipalities the authority to initiate 
an assessment reimbursement area to finance all costs of a water or sewer improvement and to become the 
sole beneficiary of the reimbursements. The Public Works Committee reviewed this ordinance at their January 
9 meeting, and concurred to recommend approval to the full City Council. 
 
Councilor Bode moved and Councilor Kuiken seconded to approve Ordinance No. 1572, Latecomers 
Agreement, Methods and Procedures and authorize the Mayor’s signature on the ordinance. Motion 
approved on 7-0 vote.  
 
Ordinance No. 1573-Relocation of Historical and Other Buildings within City Limits 
Ordinance No. 1573 reflects updates to Section 15.05.010 of the Lynden Municipal Code which regulates the 
moving and relocation of buildings within the City; to include residential, historical buildings that might be facing 
demolition. This update also includes requirements to move buildings within city limits. 
 
Councilor Bode moved and Councilor De Valois seconded to Ordinance No. 1573, Pertaining to the 
Relocation of Historical and Other Buildings within the City Limits and authorize the Mayor’s 
signature on the ordinance. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.   
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Council Committee Updates 
 
Councilor Kuiken reporting for the Finance Committee, involving the discussion of:  

• Finance agenda items for January 22, 2019 council meeting 
• Increase in overtime costs for December 2018 
• 2018 Sales Tax revenue continues to be strong 

 
Councilor De Valois reporting for the Parks Committee, involving the discussion of:  

• Oversite for Berthusen Park restrooms and the rollover of funding from 2018 to 2019 
• Removal of Greenfield Park fence that is in dis-repair 
• Meeting with Park & Rec District regarding the pending Bond 
• Dogs at Berthusen Park  
• Climbing Rocks at City Park and Bender Field thanks to Rotary Club 
• The concern about the swans ingesting lead at the Gun Club 

6



 
 

 
 

 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 4 of 4 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

 
Councilor Bode reporting for the Public Works Committee, involving the discussion of: 

• Continued communication with the Senior Community Center 
• Latecomers Agreement agenda item for January 22, 2019 council meeting 
• Sidewalks in the Homestead area need repair 
• Progress of Riverview Road project 
• Seventh Street design and parking availability 
• Industrial condensate line revisions to design 

 
 
 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Council did not hold an executive session. 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The January 22, 2019 regular session of the Lynden City Council adjourned at 7:27  p.m. 
 
 
             
Pamela D. Brown, City Clerk     Scott Korthuis, Mayor 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2019 Legal Review: 
☒ Yes - Reviewed 
☐ No - Not Reviewed 
☐ Review Not Required 

Department: Administration  
Contact Name/Phone: Vanessa Bronsema  

(360) 255-7086 
Council Committee Review: 
☐ Community Development         ☐ Public Safety 
☐ Finance                                    ☐ Public Works 
☐ Parks                                        ☒ Other: Wage/Personnel  
Attachments: 

 
1. Lynden Police Officers Collective Bargaining Agreement 2018-2021 
2. Memorandum of Understanding – Article 8 (Sick Leave) 

 
Name of Agenda Item: 
 
Approval of Teamsters 231 Labor Contract for Police Officers 
 
Summary Statement: 
 
On October 1, 2018 the City reached a tentative agreement for the labor contract with the commissioned Police 
Officers represented by the Teamsters Local 231.  The Union voted to ratify the contract on January 14, 2019.  
During the document revision process further changes were made to Article 8 (Sick Leave) in order to comply 
with recent changes to Washington State’s minimum wage and sick leave law; those changes are captured in 
the supplemental Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 
 
The City Council has been provided a “red-lined” version of the documents to see the changes from the 
previous contract separate from the final documents included here, which are prepared for the Mayor’s 
signature. 
 
Some key components of the contract include: 

• Four (4) year term, effective Jan. 1, 2018 – Dec. 31, 2021. 
• Inclusion of the supervisory Lieutenant position. 
• 14.45% cost of living adjustment (COLA) / wage increase over the life of the contract. 
• Employee health care premium contribution of 10% (monthly), with a monthly “cap” removed in 2021. 
• $3,000 per officer for health care premium offset in 2018 and 2019. 

 
The expected cost of the contract over the four-year term is $460,000 for wages and health insurance benefits.  
Other benefits, such as retirement contributions, are not included in this estimate. 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
Approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement, including the Memorandum of Understanding for sick leave, for 
the Mayor’s signature. 
 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

20



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

1 

Contents 
GENERAL PURPOSES ............................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 1  UNION RECOGNITION AND SECURITY ................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE 2  UNION-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS ...................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 3  NEW HIRE NOTIFICATION ..................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 4  WORK SCHEDULE .................................................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE  5 PAID HOLIDAYS ...................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE  6 PAID VACATIONS ................................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE  7 HEALTH & WELFARE .............................................................................................. 7 

ARTICLE  8 SICK LEAVE PAY .................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE  9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ........................................................................................ 10 

ARTICLE 10  JURY DUTY & MILITARY LEAVE ........................................................................ 11 

ARTICLE 11 SCHEDULE OF WAGES ....................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 12  INITIATION FEE AND DUES CHECKOFF ........................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 13  HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE ............................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 14  COMMUNICABLE DISEASE IMMUNIZATION .................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 15  SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS........................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 16  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ................................................................................ 17 

ARTICLE 17  DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE ........................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE 18  TERMINATION CLAUSE ..................................................................................... 20 

WAGE ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM A ....................................................................................... 22 

Monthly Base Salary Rates ..................................................................................................... 22 

Annual Base Salary Rates ....................................................................................................... 22 

Base Hourly Wage (11-hour shifts) .......................................................................................... 23 

HEALTH & WELFARE – ADDENDUM B .................................................................................... 24 

One-Time Health Insurance Cost Offset .................................................................................. 26 

TAKE HOME VEHICLES MOU – ADDENDUM C ...................................................................... 27 

PENSION ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM D.................................................................................. 28 

ALTERNATIVE SHIFT ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM E .............................................................. 29 

RETURN TO WORK / LIGHT DUTY ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM F ......................................... 30 

WEINGARTEN   RIGHTS   FOR   BARGAINING   UNIT   EMPLOYEES .................................. 32 

GARRITY RIGHTS ..................................................................................................................... 33 

CONSTITUTIONAL PROTECTION STATEMENT: .................................................................... 34 

 

21



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

2 

 
This Agreement made and entered into by and between the CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON, 
party of the first part, and GENERAL TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 231 of Whatcom County, 
Washington, party of the second part.   
 

GENERAL PURPOSES 
  
The City of Lynden, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and Local 231 of the International 
Brotherhood of Teamsters, hereinafter referred to as the Union, do hereby reach agreement for 
the purposes of enhancing the Employer/employee relationship and to promote the general 
efficiency, morale and security of the employees. 
 

ARTICLE 1  UNION RECOGNITION AND SECURITY 
 

1.01  The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative for the 
purposes of collective bargaining for all Commissioned Police Officers of the City excluding the 
Chief and Deputy Chief positions. 
 
1.02  Employees classified as Commissioned Police Officers may exercise their right to join the 
Union without interference from the Employer. 
 
1.02.1 The City will allow the Union thirty (30) minutes to meet with new employees, during the 
employee’s regular working hours, for purposes of presenting information about the bargaining 
unit. This shall occur as close as possible to an employee’s date of hire, but in no instance later 
than ninety (90) calendar days. The Union is responsible for scheduling meetings with new 
employees after receiving notice of hire from the City. 
 
1.03  No employee shall be discharged, suspended or discriminated against for upholding Union 
principles and any employee working under instruction of the Union or who serves on a committee 
may do so without losing their position for such activity, provided activity is not done on employer's 
time. There shall be no discrimination against any individual employee of the City or member of 
the labor organization with whom the City has a bona fide collective bargaining agreement with 
respect to the hire, tenure, compensation or other terms and conditions of employment because 
of Union membership, race, color, religion, national origin, creed, sex, marital status, physical, 
mental or other sensory handicap or age except where such constitute a bona fide occupational 
qualification.   
 
1.04  No employee covered by this Agreement shall suffer a reduction in wages or conditions as 
a result of the adoption of this Agreement.   
 
1.05  Only members of the bargaining unit shall perform work of the bargaining unit, excluding 
department heads and reserve officers as defined herein. All work hours including standby and/or 
overtime hours shall first be offered to regular, fully commissioned police officers of the bargaining 
unit. After the first right of refusal by regular police officers has been exercised, the work hours 
including standby and/or overtime hours may be assigned to Reserve Police Officers.  
 

22



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

3 

1.06  Reserve Police Officers:  Reserve officers may be assigned duties of members of the 
bargaining unit in cases where, in the judgment of the supervisor on duty, additional assistance 
is needed beyond the capability of those bargaining unit members available and, at that time, 
reserve officers are to be paid at the rate of pay specified in Article 11.09 of this Agreement. 
Reserve officers shall not be considered a part of the bargaining unit for any other benefits or 
conditions under this Agreement, other than those wages provided in Article 11.09 and the “Hold 
Harmless Clause” in Article 13, or otherwise required by law. 
 

ARTICLE 2  UNION-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS 
 

2.01  All collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours and other working conditions of 
employment shall be conducted by authorized representatives of the Union and authorized 
representatives of the Employer.   
 
2.02  It is recognized that the Employer will retain whatever rights and authority necessary for it 
to operate and direct the affairs of the Department in all the various aspects, including but not 
limited to: the right to direct the working forces; to plan, direct and control all of the operations and 
services of the Department; to determine the method, means, organization and number of 
personnel by which such operations and services are to be conducted; to assign and transfer 
employees; to schedule working hours; to assign overtime; to hire and promote; to demote, 
suspend, discipline or discharge employees for just cause; to relieve employees due to a lack of 
work or other legitimate reasons; to make and enforce reasonable work rules and regulations and 
to change or eliminate methods of Police function, equipment or facilities. It is understood that no 
right herein shall be exercised or enforced in a manner contrary to or inconsistent with the 
provisions of this agreement. 
 
2.03  The Employer agrees to publish the method by which promotions shall be within the 
Department; to publish reasonable work rules and regulations, if any, and make copies of both  
available to members of the bargaining unit. Any new or change in existing rules and regulations 
by the Employer which effect terms and conditions of employment must stand the test of 
reasonableness. 
 
2.04  Officer Safety Committee:  The Officers and Police Supervisors will form a Safety 
Committee which will meet with the Police Chief or his designee to address and resolve issues of 
Officer safety. Safety issues brought forth and not satisfactorily resolved in a timely manner may 
be appealed to the City Administrator and the Mayor.  
 

ARTICLE 3  NEW HIRE NOTIFICATION 
 

3.01  The Employer agrees to notify the Union of new hires within seven days of the hire date.  
Notification must list name, address and hire date.   
 

ARTICLE 4  WORK SCHEDULE 
 

4.01 (a)  The workweek shall be 12:01 a.m. Sunday through 12:00 [midnight] Saturday. 
Standardized shifts shall be established on an eight-hour basis. All time worked over eight hours 

23



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

4 

in any one shift or over forty hours in any one workweek shall be paid for at the rate of time and 
one-half (1-1/2) the regular rate of pay. All time worked over twelve (12) hours in any one shift 
shall be paid for at twice the regular rate of pay; provided, however, that for the purposes of this 
paragraph, standby time shall not be considered time worked over eight (8) hours in any one day 
or any one shift. The workweek shall include (2) consecutive days off unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise.   
 

(b)  Work shifts that extend from one calendar day to another shall be considered 
continuous for overtime purposes. Emergency call-outs that extend from one calendar day to 
another shall be paid at the appropriate overtime rate, for those consecutive hours worked, until 
that call-out period is terminated or the employee's scheduled shift begins. There shall be no 
pyramiding of overtime.  
 
 (c)  Modification to daily and/or weekly work schedules, such as 4/10's, may be established 
by mutual agreement between the City and the Union. 
 
The "Master 10 Plan" alternative standardized shift shall be established on a ten-hour basis 
as follows: 
 
4.01.1 (a)  The workweek shall be 12:01 a.m. Sunday through 12:00 [midnight] Saturday. The 
alternative standardized shift "Master 10 Plan" shall be on a ten-hour basis, with the exception of 
officers assigned to specialized programs that require the traditional eight (8) hour shift. For 
officers working ten-hour shifts, all time worked over ten hours in any one shift or over forty hours 
in any one workweek shall be paid for at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) the regular rate of 
pay. All time worked over fourteen (14) hours in any one shift shall be paid for at twice the regular 
rate of pay; provided however, that for the purposes of this paragraph, standby time shall not be 
considered time worked over ten (10) hours in any one day or any one shift. The workweek shall 
include three (3) consecutive days off, except in cases where shift rotations on the "Lynden Police 
Department Master 10 Plan" may cause an employee to return to work after only 68 hours off 
between shifts. 
 
4.01.1 (b)  Work shifts that extend from one calendar day to another shall be considered 
continuous for overtime purposes. Emergency call-outs that extend from one calendar day to 
another shall be paid at the appropriate overtime rate, for those consecutive hours worked, until 
that call-out period is terminated, or the employee's scheduled shift begins. There shall be no 
pyramiding of overtime. 
 
4.02  CALL BACK TO DUTY 
 
 (a)  Personnel called back to duty following completion of a shift or on an off-duty day shall 
be guaranteed two hours pay at the overtime rate of time and one-half for duty of two (2) hours or 
less, provided the Chief has instructed the employee to report. For duty over two (2) hours but 
less than three (3) hours, they shall be compensated for three (3) hours on duty at the rate of time 
and one-half. If work extends beyond three (3) hours, the employee will be paid the actual hours 
on duty at the overtime rate of time and one-half. Employees required to report before their normal 

24



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

5 

starting time shall be compensated at time and one-half provided they work more than their regular 
shift. 
 
 (b)  Personnel called back to duty to appear in court following completion of a shift or on 
an off-duty day shall be guaranteed three (3) hours pay at the rate of double time, provided the 
Chief has instructed the employee to report. If work extends beyond three (3) hours, the employee 
will be paid the actual hours on duty at the rate of double time. When subpoenaed to testify in 
Superior Court, uniformed employees may be rescheduled from other shifts to a day shift as 
follows:  If subpoenaed to testify in Superior Court a week or more in advance, the subpoenaed 
officer's schedule may be changed to a day shift. No change in shift shall be made until a week 
has elapsed from the date of receipt of the subpoena, unless the officer agrees to an earlier 
change.   
 

(c)  Court pay will be paid as follows: 
 

o Vacation Day, Day Off:  Three (3) hour minimum at double (2) time. 
 

o Graveyard:  When bulk of the shift is on the court day, three (3) hour minimum at 
Double (2) time. 
 

o Swing Shift (2:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.):  i.e., court starts at 1:30 p.m., one-half (½) 
hour at time and one-half (1½) rate. 
 

o Day Shift (6:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.):  Actual time past 2:00 p.m. at time and one-half 
(1½) rate. 

 
4.03  STANDBY TIME::  Officers ordered by the Chief to be on standby shall be compensated at 
time and one-half their regular rate of pay. Officer(s) required to be on stand-by for possible court 
duty will receive such notice, in writing, by the City, stating the hours and date(s) of the specified 
stand-by duty. If said duty is canceled less than 12 hours prior to the stand-by duty period, 3 hours 
call-time at time and one-half shall be paid to the officer(s) affected. If the affected officer(s) reports 
to court duty, he/she shall be paid as outlined in Section 4.02.  
  

25



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

6 

 
ARTICLE  5 PAID HOLIDAYS 

 
5.01 (a)  The following days shall be considered as paid holidays at eight (8) hours per holiday 
and shall be paid for regardless of the day in the week the holiday should occur: 
 
  New Year’s Day   Veteran's Day 
  Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday Thanksgiving Day 
  President's Day   Day After Thanksgiving 
  Memorial Day   Christmas Day 
  Fourth of July   Employee's Birthday* 
  Labor Day    Floating Holiday** 
 
* Employee’s birthday may be taken at any point in the calendar year (January 1 through 
December 31) and may be taken in hourly increments. Any remaining time for the birthday 
holiday not used within the calendar year will be forfeited. 
 
** Floating holiday may be taken at the employee's discretion with Employer concurrence. The 
Floating Holiday must be used in the year it is received or be forfeited.  
 
 (b)  All work performed on January 1st, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving 
Day and Christmas Day shall be paid for at the rate of double time. All work performed on the 
remaining holidays listed in 6.01 above shall be paid for at the rate of time and one-half in addition 
to holiday pay.   
 
 (c)  Each employee shall receive twelve days (96 hours) off each year in lieu of holidays. 
The employee shall be allowed to accrue the days off in lieu of holidays as the corresponding 
holidays in Section 5.01 actually occur, and bid these days in conjunction with the vacation 
schedule listed in Article 6.01 in the calendar year after earning; provided, however, except by 
permission of the City, no employee shall take more than three weeks of vacation consecutively. 
 
 (d)  Terminated employees entitled to holidays listed above shall be paid in cash at time of 
termination for all holidays that have occurred during employee's time of employment for which 
employee has not received compensation for or time off.   
 
  (e)  If an officer is ill on a holiday he/she would have normally worked, accrued sick leave 
may be used for the holiday and the eight (8) hours for that holiday will be added to their 
vacation accrual.  If a holiday falls on an officer's normal day off, eight hours will be added to 
their vacation accrual. 
  

26



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

7 

 
ARTICLE  6 PAID VACATIONS 

 
6.01  A schedule of paid vacations shall be on the following basis: 
 

Year of Employment Annual 
Accrual 

Monthly 
Accrual 

Semi-Monthly 
Accrual 

Max. 
Accrual/Year 

During year 1 of employment 80 hours pay 6.68 3.34 120 hours 
During year 2 of employment 88 hours pay 7.34 3.67 128 hours 
During year 3 of employment 96 hours pay 8.00 4.00 136 hours 
During year 4 of employment 104 hours pay 8.68 4.34 144 hours 
During year 5 of employment 120 hours pay 10.00 5.00 160 hours 
During year 6 of employment 128 hours pay 10.68 5.34 168 hours 
During year 7 of employment 136 hours pay 11.34 5.67 176 hours 
During year 8 of employment 144 hours pay 12.00 6.00 184 hours 
During year 9 of employment 152 hours pay 12.68 6.34 192 hours 
During year 10 of employment 160 hours pay 13.34 6.67 200 hours 
During year 15 and thereafter 200 hours pay 16.68 8.34 240 hours 

 
6.02   Accrued and unused vacation shall be paid to employees who are terminated or who 
terminate on the basis of 1/12th of earned vacation for each month from hire date to date of 
termination. 
 
6.03 The Chief of Police may grant in excess of three (3) consecutive weeks of vacation, but 
solely at his discretion.  
 
6.04 Employees shall be allowed to accrue a maximum of forty (40) hours of vacation time, in 
addition to their annual accrual as shown in their maximum accrual limit in 6.01. Any hours over 
that limit shall be forfeited on an annual basis, at the end of each calendar year.  
 

ARTICLE  7 HEALTH & WELFARE 
 

7.01  HEALTH & WELFARE:  In accordance with the Collective Bargaining Agreement which 
expired December 31, 1978, personnel were covered in accordance with the then existing Law 
Enforcement Officers (LEOFF) system on the basis of 100% for medical-hospital. By legislative 
action, personnel hired October 1, 1977 and after were excluded from such coverage unless they 
were disabled for periods in excess of six months, after which time they would be covered at 
100%. The parties to this Collective Bargaining Agreement agree that all personnel on the payroll 
prior to 10/1/77 shall continue, during the life of this Agreement, with 100% coverage for medical 
and hospital costs. For personnel hired 10/1/77 and after, the City agrees to make the required 
monthly premium payments on behalf of the employee and the employee's dependents to Group 
Health Cooperative of Puget Sound in order to maintain the level of benefits under the "(GHC) 
Co-Pay Plan 2”. To be eligible for the benefits listed in this Article, the employee must be 
compensated for eighty (80) hours or more in the previous month. New employees and their 
eligible dependents will be covered as follows: (1) LEOFF 1 employees will be covered on date 

27



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

8 

of employment; and (2) all other employees and their dependents will be covered on the first day 
of the month following the date of employment. 
 
7.01 (a)  See Health and Welfare Addendum 
 
7.01.2  Medical Opt-Out:  Employees who have medical coverage through their spouse, may 
choose to discontinue medical coverage with the City of Lynden, with written notice to the City, 
and receive a monthly cash benefit in the amount of 60% of the monthly medical premiums 
discontinued. The City will retain the balance of 40% of the monthly premium discontinued. The 
employee may re-enroll for medical coverage with a 30-day written notice to the City and forfeit 
their monthly cash reimbursement in the month(s) they receive medical coverage. Medical opt-
out requests will be allowed on a first come/first serve basis by approval of the City so as not to 
jeopardize the participation requirements of the City’s insurance provider. The employee 
requesting to opt-out of medical coverage, provided by the City, agrees to indemnify and hold the 
City and the Union harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders and judgments brought and 
issued against the City or the Union in regard to the employee discontinuing their medical 
insurance coverage with the City. 
 
7.02  DENTAL:  The City agrees to pay the premium required to provide Washington Teamster 
Dental Plan "B" coverage. 
 
7.03  VISION:  The City agrees to pay the premium required to provide Washington Teamster 
Vision Plan EXT coverage.  
 
7.04  The City agrees to maintain benefits during the life of this Agreement and the Union agrees 
that during the life of this Agreement it will not request additional benefits. 
 
7.05  Benefit carriers may be changed or benefits may become self-insured by the City through 
mutual agreement of the City and the Union. 
 

ARTICLE  8 SICK LEAVE PAY 
 

8.01 (a)  LEOFF I EMPLOYEES:  Prior to October 1, 1977 personnel covered by this Agreement 
were covered in accordance with the then existing legislation for Law Enforcement Officers which 
provided that during periods of absence because of illness or accident such employee did not 
suffer a reduction in pay during such absence. As a result of legislative action, personnel on the 
payroll prior to October 1, 1977 continue to have coverage on a "grandfather" basis. Personnel 
hired on or after October 1, 1977 were eliminated from coverage until or unless they suffered a 
disability which lasted over six months, at which time they would fall under the LEOFF disability 
pension system.   
 
 (b)  The parties to this Agreement agree that all personnel on the payroll prior to October 
1, 1977 shall continue during the life of this Agreement with the same coverage as they previously 
enjoyed. 
 

28



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

9 

(c)  Sick leave pay for LEOFF I employees will not be allowed in the case of application for 
disability leave until completion or termination of disability leave period. In no case, with regard to 
LEOFF I employees, may sick leave be used in combination with disability leave in excess of the 
maximum six (6) month disability leave period allowable and/or in excess of accrued sick leave. 

 
8.01.1 (a)  All employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eleven (11) hours per month, for 
each month of City employment, up to a maximum of 1136 hours. Part-time employees shall 
accrue prorated sick leave, based on the average hours worked per day, during the month, for 
each month of City employment. 
 

(b)  For employees hired on or before December 31, 2014: Upon accumulation of 1040 
hours of sick leave, the employee may sell back to the City any amount of hours over 1040 at fifty 
percent (50%) of the current rate of pay the employee is receiving at the time of the "sell back". 
This "sell back" must occur at the end of the calendar year (last payroll check) and only then. The 
employee must notify the City payroll department, on a form supplied by the City, no later than 
December 1st of each year.  

 
(c)  Employees hired after December 31, 2014 will not have the option to “sell back” sick 

leave hours. 
 
 (d)  Accumulation of sick leave beyond 1136 hours will cause the employee to lose those 
hours accrued beyond the maximum limit.  
 
 (e) Sick pay shall start with the first day of illness, injury, accident or hospitalization, or 
to instances in which the employee must care for his/her sick or injured spouse, domestic partner, 
significant other, child, or parent.  The employee shall submit a doctor's certificate to establish 
bona fide illness, if requested by the Employer. If the City determines that the use of sick leave 
by the employee shows a pattern of misuse of this benefit, the City can require that the employee 
provide a doctor’s note to establish evidence of illness of the employee or the employee’s 
dependent for whom this benefit was used. If it is determined that the employee is misusing this 
benefit, the City may take action against the employee, denying the use of sick leave benefits and 
possible disciplinary action. 
 
 (f)  Upon termination of employment with the City, unless the cause of termination is gross 
misconduct related to employment or conviction of a criminal offense that has a direct adverse 
effect on the employee's employment or reputation of the City, the employee will receive pay for 
all of his/her accumulated sick leave at the rate of 50%. 
 

(g)  Sick leave pay shall be coordinated with any time loss paid by the State Industrial 
Insurance Program. The actual amount paid by the Employer shall be the only amount charged 
against the employee's sick leave. 
 
8.02  Family Leave:  The City will provide leave to any eligible employee covered by this 
Agreement, consistent with the Washington State Family Leave laws and the Federal Family and 
Medical Leave Act (FMLA).  At the employee’s option, they may retain, in each category, up to 
eighty (80) hours of accrued vacation and sick leave. 

29



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

10 

 
8.03  Use of Sick Leave for Family Care:  Sick leave (not associated with FMLA leave) shall 
include time off each year to care for an illness of the employee's spouse, domestic partner, 
significant other, child, or parent, which shall include time which can be used, if it is absolutely 
necessary, to transport a spouse or parent to doctor appointments. Accrued sick leave (other than 
that associated with FMLA leave) also may be used to care for a child of an employee, under the 
age of 18, with a health condition that requires treatment or supervision. A health condition that 
requires treatment or supervision is defined as: 
 
• any medical condition requiring medication that the child cannot self-medicate;  
 
• any medical, health or mental health condition which would endanger the child's safety or 

recovery without the presence of a parent or guardian; 
 
• any condition warranting preventative health care such as physical, dental, optical or 

immunization services when a parent must be present to authorize such services and when 
sick leave may otherwise be used for the employee's preventative health care. 

 
The City has the right to require a doctor's certification proving that the illness of the dependent is 
sufficiently serious to require the employee to be in attendance. 
 
8.04 Parental Leave: Parental leave not otherwise addressed by the FMLA will be allowed, and 
shall include paid time off for maternity-related (including disability), parental, and/or spousal care 
responsibilities.  Employees may use up to 240 hours of paid sick, vacation or comp. time leave 
in a 12-month period for this purpose; the 12-month period begins on the first day of absence 
(where not otherwise covered by FMLA), and is determined on a rolling basis.  Leave above 240 
hours may be allowed, subject to approval of the City. 
 

ARTICLE  9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 

9.01  If an employee covered by this agreement suffers a death in their immediate family, such 
employee shall be granted time off with full pay  “Immediate Family” and “Time Off” shall be 
defined as follows: 
 
9.02 Immediate Family: The employee’s immediate family for purposes of bereavement leave 
is defined as the employee’s spouse, child, grandchild, parent, brother, sister, includes those in a 
step relationship with the employee or spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-
in-law, grandparent and guardian of the employee or spouse, or the death of any person residing 
with or legally dependent upon the employee. 
 
9.03 Time Off: An employee shall be granted not more than five (5) working days (not to 
exceed 55 hours) absence with full pay for bereavement and to assist with funeral arrangements 
and services when a death occurs. 
 
 
 

30



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

11 

9.04 Accrued sick leave, up to an additional five (5) days maximum, may be used if additional 
time off is needed. Of this five (5) day maximum allowance, an employee may use accrued 
vacation or a combination of accrued sick leave and accrued vacation, provided that not more 
than three (3) days of accrued sick leave shall be used. 
 
9.05 Up to three (3) days of accrued sick leave per year may be used to attend the funeral of a 
friend or a family member that is not listed above. 
 
Days, in this Article 9, are eight (8) hours, ten (10), or eleven (11) hours depending on the 
employees shift schedule. 
 

ARTICLE 10  JURY DUTY & MILITARY LEAVE 
 

10.01  When an employee covered by this Agreement is called upon for jury service in any 
Municipal, County, State or Federal Court, they shall advise the Employer upon receipt of such 
call and if taken from their work for such service, shall be reimbursed as provided herein for any 
loss of wages while performing such service provided they exhibit to the Employer their properly 
endorsed check and permit the Employer to copy the check or voucher they receive for such 
service.  The amount the employee shall be reimbursed shall not exceed their regular rate of pay 
(monthly pay minus jury duty pay). 
 
10.02 Compensation and benefits during periods of military leave shall be as outlined in state 
law (RCW 38.40.060), USERRA and City policy.  Employees must notify his or her supervisor in 
accordance with USERRA (Section 4312 (a) (1) / 20 CFR 1002.85) upon notice or receipt of 
orders requiring an employee to be absent from their job. 
 

ARTICLE 11 SCHEDULE OF WAGES 
 

11.01  [SEE WAGE ADDENDUM A] 
 
11.02  CLOTHING ALLOWANCE:  A clothing allowance shall be provided to each officer each 
year.  Newly hired officers shall receive their first clothing allowance when appointed to their 
position. Thereafter, the clothing allowance shall be paid once a year during the February claim 
runs and claim checks will be issued during the month of February. 
 
Effective 1/1/18: The clothing allowance shall be: Initial - $1200.00 Annual - $1200.00. 
 
11.02.1  PROTECTIVE VESTS:  The City shall provide bullet-proof vests for each regular officer 
and each regular officer shall be required to wear such vest while on duty.  The City shall replace 
an officer's existing personal vest provided the vest is at least five years old. When purchasing 
vests, officers will be required to get approval from the Chief as to the style of vest so as to insure 
that it meets safety standards. An officer may then select the vest of his/her choice with the City 
paying up to the maximum amount of $1,200.00. Vests will be replaced as needed if damaged or 
destroyed in the line of duty. Upon termination from the City, officers shall turn in their protective 
vests. 
 

31



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

12 

11.03  Damaged Personal Property:  Police officers shall be reimbursed by the City for all 
personal clothing and personal property which is damaged in the line of duty. Replacement shall 
be at full replacement cost. Use of personal equipment such as night vision goggles or other 
service duty items must be approved by the Police Chief prior to use by the officer in order to 
qualify for reimbursement under this section. 
 
11.04  Longevity:  Employees covered by this Agreement, starting their ninth (9th) year of service, 
shall receive 1.1% x their monthly rate of pay per month, in addition to their regular rate of pay 
and shall receive an additional 0.1% per month for each year of service after nine (9) years. The 
percentage will be capped at 3.2%. 
 
11.05  Department Armorer:  Officer(s) assigned to the duties of Department Armorer shall 
receive a monthly premium of 3% based on the top step wage rate during the time he/she is 
assigned to and performs such assigned duties. 
 
11.06  Detective Premium:  Officer(s) assigned to the Detective position shall receive a premium 
of five percent (5%) of his/her regular pay per month. 
 
11.07  Field Training Officer: Officer(s) assigned to the duties of Field Training Officer shall 
receive a monthly premium of 3% based on the top step wage rate during the time he/she is 
assigned to and performs such assigned duties. 
 
11.08  Special Duty Employment:  The following shall apply to officers who wish to provide 
service to the Lynden Community in support of community sponsored events, including but not 
limited to the Northwest Washington Fair and Lynden School District sporting events: 
 

A. Special Duty Employment - Bargaining Unit Officers:  Bargaining Unit police officers 
working City approved and mutually agreed upon "special duty" employment for community 
events, as defined above, will be covered under all aspects of the current Collective 
Bargaining Agreement with the exception of Articles 4 and 11 (except 11.03 is still in effect). 

 
B. Hours of “special duty” work will not be used to calculate or effect other regular hours of 

work for the City in regards to overtime, call-back, sick leave or holiday pay. 
 

C. The hours that an individual officer can work this “special duty” is limited to 50 hours in a 
28 day period. 

 
D. Bargaining Unit Police Officers working City approved and mutually agreed upon “Special 

Duty Employment” for community events, other than those at the Northwest Washington 
Fair, shall be paid at the top step (8th year) Officer’s regular rate of hourly overtime pay 
(time and one-half). The City agrees to collect reimbursement, plus direct benefit costs to 
the City, from the event sponsors. 

 
a. The City will pay the Officer the rate of pay agreed to by the Officers and the 

Northwest Washington Fair (N.W.W.F.) for all hours worked during Fair week. The 
City agrees to collect reimbursement, plus direct benefit costs to the City, from the 

32



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

13 

N.W.W.F. according to said Agreement. 
 

E. The officers will be responsible for required federal tax payments on this pay. 
 

F. Any section of this Article found to be in conflict with FLSA or State of Washington Law will 
be void but will not invalidate other sections. 

 
11.09  Reserve Officer Pay:  Reserve officer pay in Section 1.06 or the Northwest Washington 
Fair and other community sponsored events shall be the “2nd six months” step of the Police Wage 
Grid. 
 
11.10  Education Incentive: The following monthly premiums for levels of education shall be the 
percentage of the Officer’s regular pay, not to be compounded. 
 
AA [or 90 credit equivalent] AA Police related BA BA Police related 

1%    2%  2%  3% 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11.10.1  Books and Tuition:  The City will reimburse officers for books and tuition for classes 
that have been successfully completed (Pass or Grade C or better) and for classes that have been 
approved by the Chief. The City, however, will not have an unlimited budget for this benefit. An 
amount will be budgeted each year and the Chief will use his discretion within the budgeted 
amount. It will be the intent of the City to administer this benefit fairly among the officer(s) who 
qualify. 
 
11.11 Sergeant Premium:  Officer(s) assigned to the Sergeant position shall receive a 
monthly premium of 13% based on, and in addition to, the top step wage rate. 
 
11.12 Lieutenant Premium: Officer(s) assigned to the Lieutenant position shall receive a 
monthly premium of 15% based on, and in addition to, the Sergeant wage rate. 
 
11.13  The City agrees to pay $40.00 per month, on behalf of each Officer, into the Officers 
choice of deferred compensation plans offered by the City. The City agrees to match the Officer's 
contributions up to an additional $60.00 per month to a maximum City contribution of $100.00 per 
month. Access to this benefit requires employment from the employee.  The Officer can choose 
one of the following plans for the City contribution: 
 

Nationwide Retirement Solutions 
or 

Washington State Deferred Compensation Program 
 

Approved “Police Related” fields of study: Criminal justice, political science, 
psychology, sociology, education, law, English, liberal arts, public administration, 
criminology, computer science, psychology, public or business administration, foreign 
language or subject approved by the Chief of Police. 

33



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

14 

11.14  Compensatory Time Off:  Officers, at their discretion, may choose to receive 
compensatory time in lieu of overtime pay that may be accrued up to a maximum of one-hundred 
and twenty (120) hours.  Accrued compensatory time may be used or cashed out at the Officer’s 
discretion, however, scheduling of any compensatory time off shall be at a time mutually 
agreeable to the employee and the Employer so as not to jeopardize the operational needs of the 
Department.  Compensatory time shall be accrued at the rate of the applicable overtime rate of 
pay received [time and one-half (1½) or double time (2x)]. Compensatory time off will not apply to 
overtime hours worked for other agencies, i.e.: State Emphasis Patrols, Special Duty Employment 
(see 11.08). 
 

ARTICLE 12  INITIATION FEE AND DUES CHECKOFF 
 

12.01  For employees who individually and voluntarily certify, in writing, that they authorize such 
deductions, Union initiation fees and dues shall be deducted by the City and remitted to the 
Secretary-Treasurer of General Teamsters Union Local 231. Accompanying said monies shall be 
a list showing names of each employee and the actual amount to be credited to their account. 
 

ARTICLE 13  HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE 
 

13.01  The City of Lynden City Ordinance known as Chapter 2.14, "Legal Actions Against City 
Officials and Employees," is as follows:  
 
Sections: 
 2.14.010  Definitions 
 2.14.020  Legal representation 
 2.14.030  Exclusions 
 2.14.040  Determination of exclusion 
 2.14.050  Representation and payment of claims--conditions 
 2.14.060  Effect of compliance with conditions 
 2.14.070  Failure to comply with conditions 
 2.14.080  Reimbursement of incurred expenses 
 2.14.090  Conflict with provisions of insurance policies 
 2.14.100  Pending claims 
 
2.14.010 - Definitions:  Unless the context indicates otherwise, the words and phrases used in 
this chapter shall have the following meanings: 
 
 A.  "Employee" means any person who is or has been employed by the City. 
 
 B.  "Official" means any person who is serving or has served as an elected City official, 
and any person who is serving or has served as an appointed member of any City board, 
commission  or committee.  (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982). 
 
  

34



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

15 

2.14.020 - Legal Representation:   
 
 A.  As a condition of service or employment with the City, the City shall provide to an 
official or employee, subject to the conditions and requirements of this chapter, and 
notwithstanding the fact that such official or employee may have concluded service or 
employment with the City, such legal representation as may be reasonably necessary to defend 
a claim or lawsuit filed against such official or employee resulting from any conduct, act or 
omission of such official or employee on behalf of the City in their capacity as a City official or 
employee, which act or omission is within the scope of their service or employment with the City.   
 
 B.  Except as may be provided in any applicable policy of municipal insurance, such 
legal representation shall be provided by the City Attorney or by an attorney designated by the 
City Attorney. (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.030 - Exclusions:   
 
 A.  The obligations assumed under this chapter by the City and the City Attorney shall 
not apply to: 
 

1. Any dishonest, fraudulent, criminal, or malicious act of any official or employee; 
 

2. Any act of an official or employee which is not performed on behalf of the City; 
 

3. Any act which is outside the scope of an official's or employee's service or 
employment with the City; or 

 
4. Any lawsuit brought by or on behalf of the City. 

 
 B.  The provisions of this chapter shall have no force or effect with respect to any 
accident, occurrence or circumstance for which the City or the official or employee is insured 
against loss or damages under the terms of any valid insurance policy. (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.040 - Determination of Exclusion:  The determination of whether an official or employee is 
entitled to a defense by the City under the terms of this chapter shall be made by the City Attorney. 
There shall be no appeal from such determination, except to the superior court by means of an 
action for declaratory judgment.  (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.050 - Representation and Payment of Claims--Conditions:  The provisions of this chapter 
shall be applicable only if the following conditions are met: 
 
 A.  In the event of any incident or course of conduct potentially giving rise to a claim for 
damage, or the commencement of a suit, the official or employee involved shall, as soon as 
practicable, give the City Attorney written notice thereof, identifying the official or employee 
involved, all information known to official or employee with respect to the date, time, place and 
circumstances surrounding the incident or conduct giving rise to the claim or lawsuit, as well as 

35



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

16 

the names and addresses of all persons allegedly injured or otherwise damaged thereby, and the 
names and addresses of  all witnesses.  
 
 B.  Upon receipt thereof, the official or employee shall forthwith deliver any claim, 
demand, notice or summons, or other process relating to any such incident or conduct to the City 
Attorney, and shall cooperate with the City Attorney or an attorney designated by the City Attorney, 
and, upon request, assist in making settlements of any suits and enforcing any claim for any right 
of subrogation against any persons or organizations that may be liable to the City because of any 
damage or claim of loss arising from said incident or course of conduct.   
 
 C.  Such officials or employees shall not accept nor voluntarily make any payment, or 
assume any obligation, or incur any expense in connection with any actual or potential claim or 
lawsuit, other than for first aid to others at the time of the incident or course of conduct giving rise 
to such claim or lawsuit. (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.060 - Effect of Compliance with Conditions:  If legal representation of an official or 
employee is undertaken by the City Attorney and all of the conditions of representation are met, 
and a judgment is entered against the official or employee, or a settlement made, the City shall 
pay such judgment or settlement, provided that the City may, at its discretion, appeal such 
judgment.  (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.070 - Failure to Comply with Conditions:  In the event that any official or employee fails 
or refuses to comply with any of the conditions of Section 2.14.050 of this chapter, or elects to 
provide his/her own representation with respect to any such claim or litigation, then all of the 
provisions of this chapter shall be inapplicable, and have no force or effect with respect to any 
such claim or litigation.  (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.)   
 
2.14.080 - Reimbursement of Incurred Expenses: 
 
 A.  If the City Attorney determines that an official or employee does not come within the 
provisions of this chapter, and a court of competent jurisdiction later determines that such claim 
does come within the provisions of this chapter, then the City shall pay any judgment rendered 
against the official or employee, and reasonable attorney's fees and court costs incurred in 
defending against the claim. The City shall also pay reasonable attorney's fees and court costs 
incurred in obtaining the determination that such claim is covered by the provisions of this chapter.   
 
 B.  If the City Attorney determines that a claim against a City official or employee does 
not come within the provisions of this chapter, and a court of competent jurisdiction later finds that 
such claim does not come within the provisions of this chapter, then the City shall be reimbursed 
for costs or expenses incurred in obtaining the determination that such claim is not covered by 
the provisions of this chapter.  (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.090 - Conflict with Provisions of Insurance Policies: Nothing contained in this chapter 
shall be construed to modify or amend any provision of any policy of insurance where any City 
official or employee thereof is the named insured. In the event of any conflict between this chapter 
and the provisions of any such policy of insurance, the policy provisions shall be controlling; 

36



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

17 

provided, however, that nothing contained in this section shall be deemed to limit or restrict any 
employee's or official's right to full coverage pursuant to this chapter, it being the intent of this 
chapter and section to provide complete coverage outside and beyond insurance policies which 
may be in effect, while not compromising the terms and conditions of such policies by any 
conflicting provision contained in this chapter. (Ord. 658 S.A (part), 1982.) 
 
2.14.100 - Pending claims:  The provisions of this chapter shall apply to any pending claim or 
lawsuit against an official or employee, or any such claim or lawsuit hereafter filed, irrespective of 
the date of the events or circumstances which are the basis of such claim or lawsuit.  (Ord. 658 
S.A (part), 1982.) 

 
ARTICLE 14  COMMUNICABLE DISEASE IMMUNIZATION  

 
14.01  The City will provide, at the City's expense, for immunizations at the Whatcom County 
Health Department or another facility approved by the City. The immunizations covered under this 
Section will be those determined to be appropriate for the positions covered and must be 
recommended by the City’s Wellness Committee.  Receiving these immunizations will be on a 
voluntary basis by the employee. 
 

ARTICLE 15  SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS 
 

15.01  If any article or section of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by 
any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Agreement shall continue in full force 
and effect. The article or section held invalid shall be modified as required by law or the tribunal 
of competent jurisdiction, or shall be renegotiated for the purpose of an adequate replacement.   
 

ARTICLE 16  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE  
 

16.01  Definition of a Grievance:  For the purpose of this agreement the term "Grievance" means 
any dispute arising concerning the interpretation or application of the express provisions of this 
agreement. In the event of such grievance arising there shall be no suspension of operations but 
an earnest effort shall be made to resolve such grievance in the manner prescribed by this article. 
No employee will be demoted, suspended or discharged except for just cause. The Union 
reserves the right to withdraw a grievance, or not to file a grievance, if it feels, or through an 
investigation finds, the grievance has no merit. 
 
16.02  Procedure:  "Grievances" as defined by Section 16.01 shall be resolved in conformance 
with the following procedure: 
 
Step 1:  An employee claiming a violation concerning the interpretation or application of this 
agreement shall, within twenty-one (21) working days after the discovery of such alleged violation 
has occurred, present such grievance to the employee's supervisor as designated by the 
Employer. The Employer-designated representative will discuss and give an answer to such Step 
1 grievance within ten (10) working days after the grievance was presented. A grievance not 
resolved in Step 1 and appealed to Step 2 shall be placed in writing setting forth the nature of the 
grievance, the facts on which it is based, the provision or provisions of the agreement allegedly 

37



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

18 

violated, the remedy requested and shall be appealed to Step 2 by the Union within ten (10) 
working days after the Employer-designated representative's final answer in Step 1. Any 
grievance not appealed in writing to Step 2 by the Union within ten (10) working days shall be 
considered waived. 
 
Step 2:  If appealed, the written grievance shall be presented by the Union and discussed with 
the Employer-designated Step 2 representative. The Employer-designated representative shall 
give the Union the Employer's Step 2 answer in writing within ten (10) working days after the 
receipt of such Step 2 grievance. A grievance not resolved in Step 2 may be referred to Arbitration 
in Step 3 within ten (10) working days following the Employer-designated representative's final 
Step 2 answer. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Arbitration in Step 3 by the Union within 
ten (10) working days shall be considered waived. 
 
Step 3:  Arbitration:  The parties shall select an impartial arbitrator within ten (10) working days 
after the service of the demand for arbitration. If the parties fail to agree within this period upon 
an arbitrator who is able and willing to serve, either party may, within five (5) working days 
thereafter, request the Federal or State Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a list of five 
(5) disinterested persons who are qualified and willing to act as an impartial arbitrator. 
 
 (a)  Within five (5) working days after receiving the list of arbitrators, the Union and the 
Employer will conduct a coin flip to determine who strikes the first name off the list. Each will strike 
off one name in turn until only one person remains. The one remaining person on the list will be 
the sole arbitrator. 
 
 (b) The award of the arbitrator shall be rendered in writing together with his/her findings 
and conclusions and shall be final and binding upon the parties to this agreement and upon the 
grievant or grievants, if any. 
 
 (c)  The arbitrator's fees and expenses, the cost of any hearing room and the cost of a 
shorthand reporter and of the original transcript, if requested by the arbitrator, shall be borne 
equally by the Employer and the Union. All other expenses and costs shall be borne by the parties 
incurring them. 
 
 (d)  The Employer and the Union agree to comply with the time limitations set forth in 
this article and either party shall have the right to insist that the time limitations be complied with; 
provided, however, the said time limitations may be waived by mutual agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 17  DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 
 

17.01 Probationary Period: New employees will be required to serve a probationary period of 
one-year following their date of hire before being considered permanent employees. Employees 
may be terminated or disciplined during their probationary period. Discipline and termination of 
employees during their probationary period may not be challenged under the grievance/arbitration 
procedure of this Agreement. 
 
  

38



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

19 

17.02  Discipline:  Disciplinary action by the Employer shall be for just cause and shall include 
the following: 
 
  (a) Oral Reprimand, 
  (b) Written Reprimand, 
  (c) Demotion, 
  (d) Suspension, 
  (e) Discharge. 
 
17.03  Warning Notice Procedure: 
 
 (a)  No employee covered under this agreement shall be discharged or suspended 
except for just cause. However, prior to such action the Employer shall first notify the employee 
and the Union in writing defining the reasons and giving the employee and the Union an 
opportunity to attempt to resolve the problem. 
 
Exceptions to this notification requirement include cases of dishonesty, being under the influence 
of alcohol, drinking of alcoholic beverages on the Employer’s premises or while on duty, 
possession or engaging in the sale, purchase, transfer, or use of drugs prohibited by law while on 
the job or at the worksite (unless such actions are in the course of the Officer’s assigned duties, 
and/or legal drugs prescribed by a physician and approved for use with the employee’s regular 
duties), insubordination, or gross misconduct related to employment. 
 
 (b)  The complaint specified in such prior warning notice shall be for the same type of 
misconduct as the cause for demotion, suspension or discharge. No such warning notice shall 
remain in effect for a period of more than twelve (12) months after its issuance, or until the 
employee has worked at least 1,400 hours after its issuance, whichever is the later. 
 
 (c)  Discharge, suspension or demotion must be by proper written notice to the employee 
and the Union within fifteen (15) working days, exclusive of Saturday, Sunday and holidays, of 
when the Employer first knew or reasonably should have known of the violation claimed by the 
Employer as the basis for discharge, demotion or suspension. In cases where dishonesty or other 
illegal conduct is involved, the discharge, suspension or demotion notice must be within a 
reasonable time after the discovery of the alleged misconduct. 
 
17.04  Notification of Employee: 
 
 (a)  Suspensions, demotions and discharges will be in written form. 
 
 (b)  Notices of suspensions, demotions or discharges shall include a statement of the 
charges and the date on which time the action is to be effective. In case of demotion, the position 
to which the employee is demoted shall be identified. 
 
17.05  Discharge:   
 
 (a)  Discharge shall be for just cause only. 

39



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

20 

 
 (b)  The statement of charges shall be served on the employee with a copy by registered 
mail to the Union. 
 
 (c)  Upon receipt of the statement of charges a grievance may be filed in accordance 
with Article 16 except Step 1 in Article 16.02 shall take place within twenty-one (21) working days 
from date of discharge. 
 
 (d)  Prior to any hearing or arbitration process, a joint meeting may be held by agreement 
of the Employer and the Union in an effort to resolve the disputed discharge. 
 
17.06  Personnel Records:   
 
 (a)  Copies of all letters of commendation, complaints and written reprimands that are 
entered into the employee's permanent file shall be given to the employee and the employee shall 
be permitted to respond thereto. Such responses shall be attached to and made a part of the 
permanent personnel file. 
 
 (b)  Written reprimands, notices of suspension, demotion and discharge which are to 
become part of the employee's personnel file shall be read and acknowledged by signature of the 
employee. The employee and the Union will receive a copy of such reprimands and/or notices. 
 
17.07  Grievances Regarding Discipline:   
 
 (a)  Grievances related to this Article shall be initiated by the Union in the Steps outlined 
in the Grievance Procedure in Article 16. 
 

ARTICLE 18  TERMINATION CLAUSE 
 

18.01  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from January 1, 2018, to and including 
December 31, 2021, and shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, unless 
written notice of desire to cancel or terminate the Agreement is served by either party upon the 
other at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of expiration.   
 
18.02  It is further provided that where no cancellation or termination notice is served and the 
parties desire to continue said Agreement but also desire to negotiate changes or revisions in this 
Agreement, either party may serve upon the other a notice at least sixty (60) days prior to January 
1, 2022, or January 1st of any subsequent contract year, advising that such party desires to 
continue this Agreement but also desires to revise or change the terms or conditions of such 
Agreement.   
 
18.03  Revisions agreed upon shall be effective January 1st of the year request has been made 
for modifications to the Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, the 
parties shall be permitted all legal or economic recourse to support their request for revisions if 
the parties fail to agree thereon.   
 

40



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

21 

 
 
This Agreement is executed this _________ day of __________ 2019, by the duly authorized 
agents and representatives of the parties hereto.   
 
 
CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON  TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL 231 

   

Scott Korthuis, Mayor  Rich Ewing, Secretary-Treasurer 
 
  

41



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

22 

 
WAGE ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM A 

 
Monthly Base Salary Rates 

 
Monthly Salary 

Rates 
Effective 
1/1/2018 

Effective 
1/1/2019 

Effective 
1/1/2020 

Effective 
1/1/2020 

 3.25% COLA 3.25% COLA 3.75% COLA 4.00% COLA 
First 6 months $5,335.01 $5,508.40 $5,714.96 $5,943.56 
Second 6 months $5,518.46 $5,697.81 $5,911.48 $6,147.94 
Second year $5,739.52 $5,926.06 $6,148.28 $6,394.22 
Third year $5,958.31 $6,151.95 $6,382.65 $6,637.96 
Fourth year $6,177.09 $6,377.84 $6,617.01 $6,881.69 
Fifth year $6,407.26 $6,615.50 $6,863.58 $7,138.12 
Sixth year $6,556.53 $6,769.62 $7,023.48 $7,304.42 
Seventh year $6,727.45 $6,946.09 $7,206.57 $7,494.83 
Eighth year $6,941.67 $7,167.28 $7,436.05 $7,733.49      
Sergeant 
top step + 13% $7,844.09 $8,099.02 $8,402.74 $8,738.85 

Lieutenant 
Sgt. + 15% $9,020.70 $9,313.88 $9,663.15 $10,049.67 

 
Annual Base Salary Rates 

 

Annual Salary Effective 
1/1/2018 

Effective 
1/1/2019 

Effective 
1/1/2020 

Effective 
1/1/2020 

 3.25% COLA 3.25% COLA 3.75% COLA 4.00% COLA 
First 6 months $64,020.12 $66,100.78 $68,579.55 $71,322.74 
Second 6 months $66,221.58 $68,373.78 $70,937.79 $73,775.31 
Second year $68,874.28 $71,112.69 $73,779.42 $76,730.59 
Third year $71,499.72 $73,823.46 $76,591.84 $79,655.51 
Fourth year $74,125.03 $76,534.10 $79,404.13 $82,580.29 
Fifth year $76,887.14 $79,385.97 $82,362.94 $85,657.46 
Sixth year $78,678.36 $81,235.41 $84,281.73 $87,653.00 
Seventh year $80,729.40 $83,353.10 $86,478.85 $89,938.00 
Eighth year $83,300.08 $86,007.33 $89,232.60 $92,801.91      
Sergeant 
top step + 13% $94,129.09 $97,188.28 $100,832.84 $104,866.16 

Lieutenant 
Sgt. + 15% $108,248.45 $111,766.52 $115,957.77 $120,596.08 

 

42



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

23 

 
Base Hourly Wage (11-hour shifts) 

 
Hourly Wage 
(11-hour shift)* 

Effective 
1/1/2018 

Effective 
1/1/2019 

Effective 
1/1/2020 

Effective 
1/1/2020 

 3.25% COLA 3.25% COLA 3.75% COLA 4.00% COLA 
First 6 months $31.21 $32.22 $33.43 $34.77 
Second 6 months $32.28 $33.33 $34.58 $35.96 
Second year $33.57 $34.66 $35.96 $37.40 
Third year $34.85 $35.98 $37.33 $38.83 
Fourth year $36.13 $37.31 $38.71 $40.25 
Fifth year $37.48 $38.70 $40.15 $41.75 
Sixth year $38.35 $39.60 $41.08 $42.73 
Seventh year $39.35 $40.63 $42.15 $43.84 
Eighth year $40.60 $41.92 $43.50 $45.24      
Sergeant 
top step + 13% $45.88 $47.37 $49.15 $51.12 

Lieutenant 
Sgt. + 15% $52.76 $54.48 $56.52 $58.78 

 
*Avg. monthly hours for 11-hour shift is 170.96. See Alternative Shift Addendum (Addendum E).   
 
Advancement to next pay step to be on employee's hire date. 
 

  

43



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

24 

HEALTH & WELFARE – ADDENDUM B 
 
Upon full ratification of this agreement, employees covered under this agreement will pay a 
portion of their Health and Welfare medical premium(s) as follows: 
 
Effective 1/1/2018, employees will pay ten percent (10%) of the Kaiser 200 Plan premiums with 
a monthly cap of $125.00.  Employees choosing the Regence HealthFirst 250 Plan will pay the 
difference in cost between the Kaiser 200 and Regence HealthFirst 250 plans, plus the 10% 
cost share, not to exceed the 2018 cap amount, for the Kaiser 200 plan. 
 

Kaiser 200 

Rates reflect the WellCity discount. Monthly Semi-Monthly 

Coverage Level Plan  
Total Cost 

City Pays 
90% 

Employee 
Pays 10% 
($125 cap) 

Employee 
Pays 10% 

($62.50 cap) 

Employee $566.44 $509.80 $56.64 $28.32 

Employee + Spouse $1,123.43 $1,011.09 $112.34 $56.17 

Employee + 1 Dependent  
(Spouse not included) $850.66 $765.59 $85.07 $42.53 

Employee + 2 Dependents  
(Spouse not included) $1,134.88 $1,021.39 $113.49 $56.74 

Employee + Spouse + 1 Dependent $1,407.65 $1,282.65 $125.00 $62.50 

Employee + Spouse + 2 Dependents $1,691.87 $1,566.87 $125.00 $62.50 

No additional charge for 3 or more dependents.   
 

Regence HealthFirst 250 

Rates reflect the WellCity discount. Monthly Semi-Monthly 

Coverage Level Plan  
Total Cost City Pays Employee 

Pays*  
Employee 

Pays* 
Employee $719.48 $509.80 $209.68 $104.84 

Employee + Spouse $1,444.99 $1,011.09 $433.90 $216.95 

Employee + 1 Dependent  
(Spouse not included) $1,076.88 $765.59 $311.29 $155.64 

Employee + 2 Dependents  
(Spouse not included) $1,372.35 $1,021.39 $350.96 $175.48 

Employee + Spouse + 1 Dependent $1,802.40 $1,282.65 $519.74 $259.87 

Employee + Spouse + 2 Dependents $2,097.87 $1,566.87 $530.99 $265.50 

No additional charge for 3 or more dependents. *Employee pays 10% of Kaiser 200 plan ($125 monthly 

cap, $62.50 semi-monthly cap) + difference between Kaiser 200 and Regence HealthFirst 250. 

44



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

25 

 
Effective 1/1/2019, employees will pay ten percent (10%) of the Kaiser 200 Plan premiums with 
a monthly cap of $125.00.  Employees choosing the Regence HealthFirst 250 Plan will pay the 
difference in cost between the Kaiser 200 and Regence HealthFirst 250 plans, plus the 10% 
cost share, not to exceed the 2019 cap amount, for the Kaiser 200 plan. 
 

Kaiser 200 

Rates reflect the WellCity discount. Monthly Semi-Monthly 

Coverage Level Plan  
Total Cost 

City Pays 
90% 

Employee 
Pays 10% 
($125 cap) 

Employee 
Pays 10% 

($62.50 cap) 

Employee $607.80 $547.02 $60.78 $30.39 

Employee + Spouse $1,205.46 $1,084.91 $120.55 $60.27 
Employee + 1 Dependent  
(Spouse not included) $912.78 $821.50 $91.28 $45.64 
Employee + 2 Dependents  
(Spouse not included) $1,217.76 $1,095.98 $121.78 $60.89 

Employee + Spouse + 1 Dependent $1,510.44 $1,385.44 $125.00 $62.50 

Employee + Spouse + 2 Dependents $1,815.42 $1,690.42 $125.00 $62.50 

No additional charge for 3 or more dependents.   
 

Regence HealthFirst 250 

Rates reflect the WellCity discount. Monthly Semi-Monthly 

Coverage Level Plan  
Total Cost City Pays Employee 

Pays*  
Employee 

Pays* 
Employee $743.23 $547.02 $196.21 $98.11 

Employee + Spouse $1,492.69 $1,084.91 $407.78 $203.89 

Employee + 1 Dependent  
(Spouse not included) $1,112.44 $821.50 $290.94 $145.47 

Employee + 2 Dependents  
(Spouse not included) $1,417.67 $1,095.98 $321.69 $160.84 

Employee + Spouse + 1 Dependent $1,861.90 $1,385.44 $476.46 $238.23 

Employee + Spouse + 2 Dependents $2,167.13 $1,690.42 $476.71 $238.36 

No additional charge for 3 or more dependents. *Employee pays 10% of Kaiser 200 plan ($125 monthly 

cap, $62.50 semi-monthly cap) + difference between Kaiser 200 and Regence HealthFirst 250. 

 
 
 
 

45



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

26 

Effective 1/1/2020, employees will pay ten percent (10%) of the Kaiser 200 Plan premiums with 
a monthly cap of $125.00.  Employees choosing the Regence HealthFirst 250 Plan will pay the 
difference in cost between the Kaiser 200 and Regence HealthFirst 250 plans, plus the 10% 
cost share, not to exceed the 2020 cap amount, for the Kaiser 200 plan. 
 

(2020 cost-sharing table TBD, and attached by end of calendar year 2019) 
 
Effective 1/1/2021, employees will pay ten percent (10%) of the Kaiser 200 Plan premiums. 
Employees choosing the Regence HealthFirst 250 Plan will pay the difference in cost between 
the Kaiser 200 and Regence HealthFirst 250 plans, plus the 10% cost share for the Kaiser 200 
plan. 
 

(2021 cost-sharing table TBD, and attached by end of calendar year 2019) 
 
Employee Health and Welfare contributions are eligible to be deducted from the employees’ pay 
on a PRE-TAX basis. Employees wishing to take advantage of the Health and Welfare pre-tax 
deduction must contact Human Resources to obtain and complete the necessary paperwork. 
 

 
One-Time Health Insurance Cost Offset 

 
For years 2018 and 2019 only, the City will pay a one-time health insurance premium cost offset 
of $1,500 per officer for each of two years ($3,000 total per officer) for officers employed at the 
time of contract ratification.   

 
  

46



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

27 

 
TAKE HOME VEHICLES MOU – ADDENDUM C 

 
Police Vehicles: Officers will be allowed to take their City Police vehicle home between shifts. 
This practice will be restricted to those who reside within ten miles of Lynden. This Memorandum 
of Understanding shall be in effect with the current Collective Bargaining Agreement [1/1/2018 – 
12/31/2021]. 
 
 
 
CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON  TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL 231 

   

Scott Korthuis, Mayor  Rich Ewing, Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 

 
  

47



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

28 

 
PENSION ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM D 

 
City of Lynden Police Department 

Collective Bargaining Agreement [1/1/2018-12/31/2021] 
 
 

Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Plan: 
 

A1: With the effective date of June 2012, the City of Lynden shall contribute $1.00 per hour into 
the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust Fund on behalf of each member of the 
bargaining unit for each hour for which compensation is paid to the officer. 
 
A2: The total amount due for each calendar month shall be remitted in a lump sum not later 
than ten (10) days after the last business day of each month.  The Employer agrees to abide by 
such rules as may be established by the Trustees of said Trust Fund to facilitate the determination 
of the hours for which contributions are due, the prompt and orderly collection of such amounts 
and the accurate reporting and recording of such hours and such amounts paid on behalf of each 
member of the bargaining unit.  Failure to make all payments herein provided for, within the time 
specified, shall be a breach of this Agreement. 
 
A3:  The Employer and the Union agree to be bound by the provisions of the Agreement and 
Declaration of Trust of the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust Fund and agree that 
Trust shall act as Trustees on their behalf. 
 
 
This Pension Addendum entered into this _____ day of _____________ 2019. 
 
 
CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON  TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL 231 

   

Scott Korthuis, Mayor  Rich Ewing, Secretary-Treasurer 
  

48



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

29 

 
ALTERNATIVE SHIFT ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM E 

Lynden Police Department Collective Bargaining Agreement 
[1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021] 

 
 
In addition to the shift schedules outlined in Article 4 Work Schedule, of the current Collective 
Bargaining Agreement, an alternative standardized shift shall be established on an eleven-hour 
basis, with the exception of Officers assigned to specialized programs that require the traditional 
eight (8) hour shift. The alternative eleven (11) hour shift schedule shall be as follows: 
 
The workweek shall consist of an 8-day period beginning at 12:01 a.m. on Day 1 through 12:00 
[midnight] Day 8. Utilizing a 24-day work cycle, Officers will work (4) eleven-hour shifts followed 
by (4) days off and will work an additional eleven hours per quarter to be utilized for training or 
other purposes at the discretion of the Police Department Administration. Not more than 2 officers 
shall be scheduled for Holiday Time or Vacation Time during a shift.  All time worked over fifteen 
(15) hours in any one shift shall be paid for at twice the regular rate of pay; provided however, 
that for the purposes of this paragraph, standby time shall not be considered time worked over 
eleven (11) hours in any one day or any one shift.  All other provisions of the current Collective 
Bargaining Agreement shall remain unchanged. 
 
With Regard to Article 9 Bereavement Leave: Days, in this Article 9, are eight (8) hours, ten 
(10) hours, or eleven (11) hours, depending on the employees shift schedule. 
 
 
 
 

This Addendum entered in to this ____ day of day of _____________ 2019, by and between: 
 
CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON  TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL 231 

   

Scott Korthuis, Mayor  Rich Ewing, Secretary-Treasurer 
  

49



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

30 

 
RETURN TO WORK / LIGHT DUTY ADDENDUM – ADDENDUM F 

 
Appropriate “light duty” assignments shall be made available to employees who are sick, 
injured, or disabled and who have been released by their attending physician to work light duty.  
No more than two (2) employees can be on light duty at any given time.  The limit of two 
employees may be increased upon request with approval from the Chief of Police and the 
Human Resources Manager.  Priority will be given to employees who are injured in the line of 
duty.   
 
Light duty assignments are not to interfere with procedures applicable to employees eligible for 
reasonable accommodation or covered under the Americans with Disabilities act (ADA), leave 
benefits under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or the Washington State Family 
Leave Act (FLA).   
 
Light Duty Assignments: 
Light duty assignments are defined as temporary, modified work assignments within the 
worker’s physical abilities, knowledge and skills. Under no circumstances will a light duty 
assignment become a permanent position or classification. 
 
Employees working light duty shall perform those duties assigned by the Chief of Police and 
shall be consistent with the type of duties normally performed by members of the bargaining 
unit.  The employee will be required to accept a light duty assignment for work within the same 
bargaining unit. Any work outside the bargaining unit will be assigned and administered by the 
Human Resources Manager. 
 
If work within the same bargaining unit is not available, the City may offer an employee work 
outside their bargaining unit; however, the employee shall have the option to refuse such work.  
Likewise, the City is not obligated to offer work outside the employee’s bargaining unit.  
However, if appropriate work is available outside the bargaining unit, and the employee requests 
such work, those requests will not be unreasonably denied. 
 
Employees on light duty will work no more hours than their regular work schedule. Light duty 
schedules are to be determined by the light duty assignment. 
 
Light duty assignments may include, but are not limited to office clerical functions, 
communications, over the phone reports, non-field investigations, errands in a City vehicle, light 
custodial work, inventory functions, report processing, and so on. 
 
Pay and Benefits: 
Any employee assigned to light or modified duty shall be paid at his/her regular base salary rate 
for hours worked. The employee’s pay will continue to come only from the Police Department 
budget, regardless of the light-duty assignment. 
 
During the light duty schedule, employees shall continue to accrue their regular benefits as 
outlined in collective bargaining and current personnel policies. 

50



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

31 

 
Process and Timeline: 
Employees seeking a light duty assignment must have their attending physician complete a 
Return-to-Work Form and a Job Description Form1, and return the completed forms to the 
Human Resources office.  These forms are to be completed and returned to HR within three (3) 
business days (Monday through Friday) following the medical treatment and assessment of 
transitional work.  The employee cannot return to work without the release of the attending 
physician. The Human Resources Manager will determine the appropriateness of light duty 
assignments. However, light duty assignments will not be unreasonably denied. 
 
Light duty assignments will be authorized in sixty (60) day increments, provided there are 
compatible duties to be performed.  A light duty assignment shall not exceed four (4) months for 
non-“line of duty” injuries or illnesses, and six (6) months for injuries or illnesses sustained in the 
“line of duty”.  Employees may request, in writing, an extension of the four or six-month 
provision(s) of this section in thirty (30) day increments, subject to approval by the Chief of 
Police and the Human Resources Manager. 
 
Employees on light duty assignment(s) due to a non-work-related injury or illness will be allowed 
to complete the authorized sixty (60) day or thirty (30) day (if on extension) increment prior to 
yielding priority to an employee who is injured in the “line of duty”. 
 
Employees will update the Human Resources Manager on the status of their recovery and light 
duty assignment in thirty (30) day intervals. Employees released to full duty by their physician 
prior to the end of their approved increment period must report the same to the Chief of Police 
and the Human Resources Manager. 
 
Returning to Regular Duty: 
Employees returning to regular duty from a light duty assignment must furnish a physician’s note 
to the Human Resources Manager releasing the employee to full duty status prior to assuming 
their regular duties. 
 
  

                                            
1 Return to Work and Job Description Forms would be created and maintained by HR. (The Union will review, and reserves all 
rights.) 

51



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

32 

 
WEINGARTEN   RIGHTS   FOR   BARGAINING   UNIT   EMPLOYEES 

 
 
 
* The Union recommends employees exercise their Weingarten rights as follows: 
 
 

1. If you are asked to attend a meeting with management which you believe may lead to 
discipline, ask to have a Union steward or business representative present. If possible, 
notify the Union steward or business representative of the meeting immediately. When in 
doubt, ask management whether or not anything said at the meeting could lead to 
disciplinary action. 
 

2. If you are unable to obtain representation before entering the meeting, you should: 
 

a) Ask whether you are free to leave the room if you choose to do so; 
 

b) Ask whether anything said at the interview could lead to disciplinary action or 
discharge; 
 

c) If so, ask that (1) a Union steward or business representative be contacted and 
brought to the meeting place before any questioning occurs, and (2) you be permitted 
to speak to the Union steward or business representative in private prior to the 
questioning; 
 

d) If a Union steward or business representative is unavailable, ask that the   
 meeting be postponed until one can be present; 
 

e) In the event the Employer nonetheless insists on proceeding with the meeting, ask 
that a fellow employee whom you trust be brought to the meeting to act as a witness. 
 

 
IF THE EMPLOYER DENIES ANY OR ALL OF THE FOREGOING REQUESTS, THE UNION 
RECOMMENDS THAT YOU ATTEND THE MEETING BUT EXERCISE YOUR RIGHT TO 
REFUSE TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS THAT MAY LEAD TO DISCIPLINARY ACTION OR 
DISCHARGE. 
 
 
* These recommendations do not apply when an employee faces possible criminal 
charges. Such employee(s) should obtain the advice of an attorney. 

  

52



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

33 

 
GARRITY RIGHTS 

 
Every experienced police officer or deputy sheriff has faced the unsettling prospect of being 
interviewed as a part of an internal affairs investigation. In most departments three principles 
appear well settled in cases in which the officer has been protected from criminal charges: 
 

1. An officer can be ordered to participate in such an investigation;  
 

2. An officer can be required to give a statement, oral or written, at times recorded, 
transcribed and sworn;  

 
3. Whatever statements are made may be used against the officer in later disciplinary 

proceedings.  
 
Officers in such situations should be informed that they have the right to make a statement 
protecting their rights. In at least one jurisdiction such a statement has been printed onto the 
internal affairs statement form [attached]; in others the statement has been printed up on wallet 
sized cards and carried by individual members. Finally, a number of officers have read or written 
the statement when giving taped interviews, or written on all statements that they sign. 
 
As a condition of employment you are required to abide by the rules and regulations. You must 
answer questions, give statements, and submit reports at the order of an investigating officer, or 
become subject to disciplinary action for refusal to obey. It is suggested that you include the 
procedure outlined here when making statements or submitting reports concerning complaints 
from citizens, or when you are suspected of a violation of the law or the rules and regulations. By 
doing so you will ensure that your statements and reports cannot be used as evidence against 
you in any proceedings before any agency bound by the rules of evidence. The procedure 
suggested is lawful and proper. Each individual officer must decide for himself if he is going to 
use it. Our advice is that we all use the procedure all of the time. This way there will be no special 
stigma on its use. Remember that it is better to be safe than sorry, and it is better to have it and 
not need it than to need it and not have it. 
 
"No man need be ashamed, nor should he be afraid, to demand and protect his Constitutional 
rights." 

  

53



LYNDEN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2021 

 
City of Lynden Police Officers CBA 
January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021 

34 

 
CONSTITUTIONAL PROTECTION STATEMENT: 

 
 
 
 
"On ____/____/____, ______:_______ at _________________________  
      (date)           (time)           (place) 
 
I was ordered to submit this report (give this statement) by: 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
     (name and rank) 
 
I submit this report (give this statement) at his order as a condition of my employment. In view of 
possible job forfeiture, I have no alternative but to abide by this order." 
 
"It is my belief and understanding that the department requires this report (statement) solely and 
exclusively for internal purposes and will not release it to any other agency. It is my further belief 
that this report (statement) will not and cannot be used against me in any subsequent 
proceedings. I authorize release of this report to my attorney or designated union representative." 
 
"I retain the right to amend or change this statement upon reflection to correct any unintended 
mistake without subjecting myself to a charge of untruthfulness." 
 
"For any and all other purposes, I hereby reserve my constitutional right to remain silent under 
the FIFTH and FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS to the UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION and 
any other rights PRESCRIBED by law. Further, I rely specifically upon the protection afforded me 
under the doctrines set forth in Garrity v. New Jersey, 385 U.S. 493 (1967), and Spevack v. Klien, 
385 U.S. 551 (1956), should this report (statement) be used for any other purpose of whatsoever 
kind or description." 
 
 

54



 

 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT 
Scott Korthuis, Mayor 
(360) 354 - 1170 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 
 

BETWEEN 
CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON 

 
AND 

GENERAL TEAMSTERS UNION, LOCAL 231 (COMMISSIONED POLICE) 
 

SUBJECT: ARTICLE 8 (SICK LEAVE PAY) 
 
BACKGROUND 

1. The City of Lynden (the “City”) and Teamsters Union Local No. 231 (the “Union”) are 
parties to a collective bargaining agreement (“CBA”) with effective dates of January 
1, 2015 through December 31, 2017.  The parties have reached a tentative 
agreement on a successor agreement which the Union voted to ratify on January 14, 
2019.  The City Council is anticipated to vote on the agreement on February 4, 2019. 
 

2. During the document editing process for the successor CBA the parties identified 
outdated language related to sick leave usage under Washington State’s minimum 
wage and sick leave law, which changed during the course of contract negotiations. 
 

3. The City and Union discussed how to address the issue and agreed a supplemental 
MOU would be most appropriate in this cirucumstance. 

 
AGREEMENT 
The City and Union agree that the following language will replace portions of Article 8, 
Sections 8.02 and 8.03 in the successor agreement, which will be effective January 1, 2018 
through December 31, 2021 upon ratification from the City Council.  The sections not listed 
below will remain unchanged in the successor agreement. 
 
8.02 Family Leave 
 
(d) Employees may carry over sick leave from year to year, to a maximum of 1136 hours.  
Accumulation of sick leave beyond 1136 hours on December 31st of each year will cause the 
employee to lose those hours accrued beyond the maximum carryover limit. 
 
(e) Sick pay shall start with the first day of illness, injury, accident or hospitalization of the 
employee, or for instances in which the employee must care for his/her sick or injured child, 
parent, spouse, domestic partner, significant other, grandparent, grandchild, sibling or other family 
member as defined under RCW 49.46.210 (2), and for any other reason in accordance with law.  
For paid sick leave usage over three (3) consecutive work days, the City may ask the employee 
for verification that the absence is for an authorized purpose.  If it is determined that the employee 
is misusing this benefit, the City may take action, in accordance with and to the extent allowable 
under the Washington State Paid Sick Leave law, against the employee, possibly denying the use 
of sick leave benefits and possible disciplinary action.  

55



 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 2 of 2 

 
(g)   Sick leave pay shall be coordinated with any time loss paid by the State Industrial 
Insurance Program. The actual amount paid by the Employer shall be the only amount charged 
against the employee's sick leave. 
 
8.03  Use of Sick Leave for Family Care:  Sick leave (not associated with FMLA leave) shall 
include time off, as provided for under law, to care for an employee’s family member.  
  
 
Signed this ____ day of February, 2019. 
 
THE CITY OF LYNDEN 
 
______________________________ 
Mayor Scott Korthuis 
City of Lynden 
 
 
Signed this ____ day of February, 2019. 
 
TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 231 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary-Treasurer Richard Ewing 
Teamsters Local 231 
 

56



 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2019 Legal Review: 

☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☒ Review Not Required 

Department: Planning Department 

Contact Name/Phone: Heidi Gudde  (360) 354-5532 

Council Committee Review: 

☒ Community Development         ☐ Public Safety 

☐ Finance                                    ☐ Public Works 

☐ Parks                                        ☐ Other: _____________ 

Attachments: 

Community Development Committee Mtg Minutes of 01-23-2019 

Name of Agenda Item: 

CDC Minutes 01-23-2019 

Recommended Action: 

Council review. 

Summary Statement: 

EnterSummary 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

57



 

 203 19th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Heidi Gudde – Planning Director 
(360) 354 - 5532 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

 
4:00 PM January 23, 2019 

2nd Floor Conference Room, City Hall 
 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
Council Members: Brent Lenssen, Kyle Strengholt, Jerry Kuiken, Mayor Scott 
Korthuis 
Staff: Heidi Gudde 
Public: Gary Vis, Kathy Stanford 
 

2. ACTION ITEMS: 

A. Minutes from the December 19, 2018 meeting approved with no changes. 

 
3. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

B. Development Reports – 2018 Summary 

Noted that more permits were issued in 2018 than in 2017 but total value of 
permits in 2018 was lower.  This is likely due to larger projects such as the 
schools and freezer warehouse in 2017 and more single family homes in 
2018. 

Discussed typical code violations handled by staff.  

C. Planning Department Major Projects List reviewed.  The following were 
discussed. 

Park and Trail Masterplan Update with the Parks Department.  Parks survey– 
Staff noted that an opinion survey would soon be released to the public.  
Concern expressed regarding reaching a full spectrum of the community’s 
demographics.  Suggestions made as to the availability of paper versions of 
the survey at specific locations including the Community Center and City Hall. 

Park Impact fees considered.  Suggested that the acceptable level of service 
for parks be increased and additional fees collected. 

Pepin Creek.  This project divided into several different topics: zoning, design 
standards, subarea plan approval, and a mitigation study.  Progress being 
made as the zoning amendments / additions proposed to be used in the 
subarea are going to the Planning Commission on Jan. 24 and the Council in 
February. Mitigation study to be discussed later in the meeting. 

58



 

 203 19th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 2 of 3 

Hearing Examiner - Amendments have been drafted.  BL requested a copy of 
the current draft. 

Short Term Rentals – Discussed at an earlier CDC meeting.  Suggested that 
they be approached like home occupations rather than conditional uses.  Pros 
and cons of STR’s discussed. More research to be done. 

Downtown Sidewalks – This issue was not on the major projects list but was 
raised by members.  Committee concluded that railings and outdoor dining 
furniture should be removable, ADA accessibility is an important 
consideration, and having current insurance for each user of public sidewalk 
(i.e. outdoor dining) is important.  Discussion also related to delineation of 
spaces on sidewalks for the consumption of alcohol.  Committee and staff are 
unclear as to the current WA State Liquor and Cannabis Board requirements 
regarding the delineation of space.  Important factors which the CDC 
indicated a preference to be addressed is liability / insurance, trash collection, 
appropriate storage of furniture, providing for snow removal, and sandwich 
boards.  Sandwich board signs have proliferated to a scale where they are 
used to advertise to vehicular traffic rather than just pedestrian traffic.  CDC 
indicated a preference for stricter enforcement of the display of sandwich 
board signs even to the extent of having board removed from the street (and 
available to be claimed later by owners). Council support for additional 
enforcement should be gauged. 

Additional major project summarized by Gudde as described in the staff 
memo. 

D. Pepin Creek Mitigation Study Update – Consultant’s Scope and Budget  

Staff briefed the CDC on the current status of the mitigation study.  The 
consultant is currently drafting the scope and budget for the project which will 
determine the fair share assessment of subarea property owners toward the 
Pepin Creek channel infrastructure as well as assess the impact of the 
WSDOT culvert project.   

The study will verify the feasibility of using SEPA mitigation fees or a Local 
Improvement District (LID) or a combination of the two.  Additionally, the 
study will determine the formula to be used to calculate fees / assessment on 
parcels within the subarea.  The initial estimate for the cost of the mitigation 
study is between $125,000 – $180,000.  Scope, contracts, and funding 
sources to be reviewed by the CDC at the February meeting.   

Pepin Creek project discussed as a whole:  In order to provide Council with a 
complete picture of the Pepin Creek project, the stream relocation design, its 
costs, and the financial contribution of development in this area, the next 
steps will be required:  

59



 

 203 19th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 3 of 3 

Land Use Planning- finalize the land use planning document (subarea 
plan) and design standards,  

Engineering- complete the proof-of-concept analysis of the alternate 
channel designs, select a design and estimate its cost,    

Financial Analysis- conduct the mitigation study to determine the tools of 
assessment and the resulting financial contributions of development 
toward the creek relocation project.  

The results of these work items will provide the Council with a more complete 
picture regarding the build-out of this portion of the UGA.  It could also identify 
the funding gaps and be used to request funding from outside sources.   

Staff noted that the time line for completing these items will require an 
additional 6 month extension of the moratorium.  Currently the moratorium is 
set to expire in early March.  

CDC members noted the value of determining the appropriate methodology of 
financial assessment.  Development’s contribution will be critical as CDC 
members expressed concerns about the costs of the channel project as a 
whole.   

CDC also discussed ramifications of halting growth in this portion of the City’s 
UGA and the City’s potential opportunities to approach the County and State 
regarding revisions to GMA standards or funding assistance.  

 

E. (added discussion item) Pepin Creek – Design Standards Update  

Feedback has indicated that design standards for residential construction 
should be applied city-wide rather than exclusive to one area or another.  
Staff will be taking feedback collected from the Planning Commission and 
Design Review Board and creating a concise set of design standards 
applicable to the whole City.  Staff anticipates that these can be discussed at 
the Feb 20th CDC and this discussion include some of the Planning 
Commission members. 

 
 

 
 
 

Next Meeting Date: February 20, 2019 

60



 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2019 Legal Review: 
☐ Yes - Reviewed 
☐ No - Not Reviewed 
☒ Review Not Required 

Department: Parks 
Contact Name/Phone: Vern Meenderinck  354-6717 
Council Committee Review: 
☐ Community Development         ☐ Public Safety 
☐ Finance                                    ☐ Public Works 
☒ Parks                                        ☐ Other: _____________ 
Attachments: 
Draft Parks Committee Minutes – January 22, 2019 
Name of Agenda Item: 
Draft Parks Committee Minutes – January 22, 2019 
Summary Statement: 
See next page. 
Recommended Action: 
For review. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

61



 

 
 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

PARKS COMMITTEE MINUTES   
January 22, 2019 

 
 

1. Roll Call: 
Members Present: Mayor Scott Korthuis, Ron DeValois, Nick Laninga, Mark   
Wohlrab 
Staff Present: City Administrator Mike Martin; Parks Director Vern Meenderinck; 
and Admin. Asst. Nancy Norris 
Guest:  

 
2. Action Items: 

a. Approval of minutes from Nov. 19, 2018 
Wohlrab motioned to approve the minutes, Laninga seconded the motion. 
The minutes from Nov. 19, 2018 were approved. 

 
b. Berthusen Restrooms request for funding for 2019 forgot to rollover the 

funds from 2018. $150,000 was allocated in the 2018 budget to build these 
restrooms, but approval from the Health Dept. delayed the project. It was 
agreed to roll the funds over into the 2019 budget, however this did not occur 
as Finance was not notified of the change. 
|Action: Parks Committee approved to go back to council to request up 
to $200,000 be added to the Berthusen 2019 budget to fund the 
restrooms from Parks Capital Reserve Fund. 

 
c. Request action/authority to remove fence at Greenfield 

The City owned fence at Greenfield is rotten and needs to be removed. The 
recommendation is not to replace it with a new fence, most property owners 
have installed their own fencing or landscaping.  
Action: Parks Committee approved the request to permanently remove 
the fence. A letter will be sent out to the surrounding property owners 
giving them a months’ notice to remove any personal fencing, gates or 
shrubs/plants that might be attached the City fence. 

 
d. Set a meeting with the Rec. District regarding their pending bond? The 

purpose of the meeting is to assist and support the Rec. District in their 
pending bond.   
Action: Parks Committee will invite the Rec. District Commissioners to 
the February 19 Parks Committee Meeting at 5pm at City Hall. (Note: 
Parks Committee will meet as normal at 4pm then meet with the 
Commissioners at 5pm). 

 
3. Information items: 

a. Off leash dogs at Berthusen- Glen & Jamie Gentry.  
The Gentry’s addressed the Parks Committee with their concerns with dogs 
being off leash at Berthusen Park.  

62



 

 
 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

 
Per recommendation from the Parks Committee Nancy will reach out to 
Rescue Hearts Northwest for advice or assistance to help address this 
issue.      

  
b. New Middle School retaining wall- blocks vs. rocks?  

Parks Committee likes the look of the rocks and would like to stick with this 
same landscape scheme. Public Works will continue to work on it as they can 
with the bigger rocks. Parks will continue to place the smaller rocks. At 
Bluestem that area will be leveled out and crush rock added. 

 
c. Climbing rocks- further updates along the Trail City Park and Bender. 

Jeff Roberts President of the Rotary Club gave a preliminary presentation to 
the Mayor and Parks Director Meenderinck. Mr. Roberts is in the process of 
gathering more information, best location scenarios, support/volunteers, and 
cost for a more formal proposal.  

 
d. Swans feeding on the gun range (Emergency?) left up to the Gun Club. 

Public Works and Parks received a call last week from the Executive Director 
of the group that Protects Swans. It was stressed that immediate action be 
taken to keep the swans from feeding on the gun club showgrounds. Calls 
were made to the Gun Club board of directors and they were taking action 
ASAP. Parks will continue to monitor this issue.    

 
e. Bender lights/ possible new fixtures? 

The City Electrician continues to research lights fixtures for Bender. The most 
recent quote received is for approx. $80,000 total, which is significantly 
cheaper than any other quote received.  

 
f. Master Plan community survey once per device.  

City Planner, Heidi Gudde, Dave Timmer and Parks Director Meenderinck 
drafted a community survey to gather input to help develop a usable Park and 
Trail Master Plan. The Survey will be available online. A link will be sent to 
emails, and it is asked that members share that email link with their friends 
and family.    

  
4.  Items added 

a.   New Fisher School Trail  
Near 17th St. Trail access the contractor left a ball of wire wrapped around a 
fence post and a wheel barrow. Mayor asked if those items could be removed. 
Also questioned if the white slates in the fence could be removed along the 
portion of the Trail the City owns.  
 
Meeting Adjourned 5:05pm.                
 

Next meeting: February 19, 2019  

63



 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2019 Legal Review: 
☐ Yes - Reviewed 
☐ No - Not Reviewed 
☒ Review Not Required 

Department: Administration 
Contact Name/Phone: Pam Brown 360.255.7085 
Council Committee Review: 
☐ Community Development         ☐ Public Safety 
☐ Finance                                    ☐ Public Works 
☐ Parks                                        ☐ Other: _____________ 
Attachments: 
Calendar 
Name of Agenda Item: 
Council Calendar: Feb 4-18, 2019 
Summary Statement: 
See next page. 
Recommended Action: 
N/A 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

64



1 1/29/2019 10:22 AMPam Brown

 February 4, 2019
 Monday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM Council Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex East Training Room; Annex North East Conference 

Room; Annex South East Conference Room
 

 February 5, 2019
 Tuesday
8:30 AM - 10:30 AM LT Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

 

5:00 PM - 6:30 PM Design Review Board Meeting -- Annex South East Conference Room
 

 February 6, 2019
 Wednesday
9:00 AM - 5:00 PM Court -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex East Training Room; Annex North East Conference Room; Annex 

South East Conference Room
 

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Check-In Nic/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

4:15 PM - 6:00 PM Public Works Committee Meeting -- City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room
 

 February 7, 2019
 Thursday
9:00 AM - 10:30 AM Technical Review Committee -- City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room

 

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Check-In John/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

2:00 PM - 3:00 PM All Staff- ADMIN -- Annex Council Chamber
Administration Hosting

4:00 PM - 5:00 PM Public Safety Committee Meeting -- Police Training Room
 

65



2 1/29/2019 10:22 AMPam Brown

 February 8, 2019
 Friday
10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Check-In Steve/Mike -- Mike's Office

 

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM Check-In Heidi/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

 February 11, 2019
 Monday
9:00 AM - 10:00 AM Check-In Vern/Mike -- Mike's Office

 

 February 12, 2019
 Tuesday
8:30 AM - 9:30 AM LT Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

 

 February 13, 2019
 Wednesday
9:00 AM - 5:00 PM Court -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex North East Conference Room; Annex South East Conference 

Room
 

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM Check-In Mark/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

2:00 PM - 3:30 PM Wellness Committee Meetings -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
Please forward as needed.  
Thanks.

Pam

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM Rec. District Meeting  -- Annex South East Conference Room
 

 February 14, 2019
 Thursday
All Day Valentine's Day -- United States

66



3 1/29/2019 10:22 AMPam Brown

 February 14, 2019 Continued
 Thursday
9:00 AM - 10:00 AM Check-In V/Mike -- Mike's Office

 

12:00 PM - 1:30 PM Soup Feed (Wellness) -- Annex East Training Room; Annex Council Chamber
Please be aware that these dates may change – hopefully not – but we 
may need to be flexible sometimes. 

7:30 PM - 9:30 PM Planning Commission Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber
 

 February 15, 2019
 Friday
8:30 AM - 9:30 AM Check In-Mike/Anthony -- Mike's Office

 

 February 18, 2019
 Monday
All Day Presidents' Day -- United States

 February 19, 2019
 Tuesday
9:00 AM - 11:00 AM Small Cities Caucus -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

 

9:30 AM - 10:30 AM Airport Board Meeting -- City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room
 

3:00 PM - 4:00 PM Finance Committee Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
Visit WWW.LYNDENWA.ORG to view the agenda

 

4:00 PM - 5:00 PM Parks Committee  -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM Council Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex East Training Room; Annex North East Conference 
Room; Annex South East Conference Room
 

67


	Top
	1. Draft Council Minutes- January 22, 2019
	2-4-2019 Draft Minutes.pdf

	2. Revised PW Item
	ES-Public Hearing N Prairie 7 Latecomers w Attachments UPDATE.pdf

	3. Police CBA
	Police CBA 20190204-Complete.pdf

	4. Community Development Committee Mtg Minutes 01-23-2019
	ES-CDC Minutes_20190123.docx
	CDC Minutes 1-23-19_draft.pdf

	5. Parks Minutes
	Parks-Draft-Minutes-Complete.pdf

	6. Calendar
	ES-Calendar Feb 4.pdf

	Bottom

